Agenda - Equality, Local Government and
Communities Committee

Meeting Venue: For further information contact:
Committee Room 3 - Senedd Naomi Stocks

Meeting date: 13 November 2019 Committee Clerk

Meeting time: 09.20 0300 200 6222

SeneddCommunities@assembly.wales

Private pre-meeting

(09.20-09.30)

Introductions, apologies, substitutions and declarations of

interest

Rough sleeping in Wales follow up: evidence session

(09.30-11.30) (Pages 1 - 77)
Martin Blakebrough, Group Chief Executive, Kaleidoscope

Lindsay Cordery-Bruce, Chief Executive, The Wallich

Richard Edwards, Chief Executive, Huggard

Charlotte Waite, Director of Transformation and Systems Change, Platfform
Dr Keith Reid, Deputy Director of Public Health, Swansea Bay University
Health Board

Dr Karen Sankey, Chief Executive, Community Care Collaborative

Josie Smith, Head of Substance Misuse Programme, Public Health Wales NHS

Trust

Papers to note
(11.30-11.35) (Page 78)
Correspondence to the Minister for Housing and Local Government regarding
rough sleeping in Wales - 4 November 2019

(Pages 79 - 80)

fv' Cynulliad National
/ Cenedlaethol Assembly for

Cymru Wales



3.2

3.3

Correspondence from the Deputy Minister and Chief Whip regarding the
equality data published by Welsh public bodies - 4 November 2019

(Pages 81 - 82)
Correspondence from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales regarding
the request for further information - 7 November 2019

(Pages 83 - 85)

Motion under Standing Order 17.42 (vi) to resolve to exclude the

public from the remainder of the meeting and items 1 and 2 of

the meeting on 21 November 2019
(11.35)

Rough sleeping in Wales follow up - consideration of evidence
(11.35-11.50)



By virtue of paragraph(s) vi of Standing Order 17.42 Ag e n d a I te m 2

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 1



Papur 1 - Kaleidoscope
Paper 1 - Kaleidoscope

The Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee at the National
Assembly for Wales is currently undertaking follow-up work on its inquiry into rough

sleeping.

Introduction

This paper is written from a very personal perspective and reflects on my
experiences as the CEO of Kaleidoscope. | am writing about what | see the situation
on the ground is but | do welcome recent initiatives by the Welsh Government such
as the recent Deep Dive Exercise looking particularly at the issues of people with co-
occurring issues. It is clear that there is much to do in this area and sadly up to this
point little progress has been made. | do note however about recent grants been
made targeted at addressing some of the issue of the group this enquiry is looking
at. The targeted resource is very welcomed but as this money has only recently been
determined it is impossible to say how successful it will be.

Kaleidoscope Project provides services across Wales, although its two major
community drug and alcohol contracts are in Powys and Gwent. Our other services
are primarily for those needing help because of their substance use involving them in
the criminal justice system. Kaleidoscope provides two services in England that also
have a relevance to this debate, which is a hostel for people with substance use and
mental health issues in Kingston Upon Thames and a detox centre in the Wirral.

« What services are available for rough sleepers who have co-occurring
substance misuse and mental health problems across Wales?

There are no services that | am aware of that offer integrated care that support rough
sleepers in Wales. There are some services that may claim to meet the needs of
people with co-occurring issues however. There are in any city services that will help
with an element of a rough sleepers issues but the reason the problem continues is
there is not enough joined up work that ensure people get the support they need to
successfully move on in their lives.

In Newport there is accommodation that rough sleepers use, if they have a
substance use issue they may be able to access the community treatment
programme, and they could register for a mental health assessment. The reality of
the services on offer is the vulnerable person has to meet with a variety of services.
Their ability to make one appointment is often difficult but to make a range of
services they need is virtually impossible.

The needs of rough sleepers are often partially met. There are interesting models
where temporary accommodation is provided, be it with converted containers or
night shelters. They have some value in terms of protecting people through the
winter but again the critical issues a person with co-occurring problems really needs
addressing is not met.

There is a lack of accommodation but in talking to rough sleepers some make a

choice not to take up the hostel places that are available. It is a strange paradox that
although for those of us looking at rough sleepers they seem to live chaotic lives they
cannot actually cope with hostels where chaos seems to pertain because of the large

Pack Page 14


http://www.assembly.wales/en/bus-home/committees/Pages/Committee-Profile.aspx?cid=447
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=20843
http://senedd.assembly.wales/mgIssueHistoryHome.aspx?IId=20843

numbers of people accommodated. If you look at the large hostels there is a sense
of chaos in them, because they take a large number of people with complex needs.
This makes people feel unsafe both physically and mentally. Many people we help
with mental health issues have autism and other conditions that make social
interaction difficult and although their lives are dis-orderly they need order in their
lives. It is sadly not uncommon for people we work for to look forward to a return to
prison.

In terms of access to drug treatment rough sleepers are often denied access to
services because they do not comply with the demands of the service provider. In
Wales there has been an emphasis on recovery. In effect, what has been created is
a situation where we have those deemed worthy of deserving treatment and those
who do not. Those we have been told to treat are the ones committed to their
recovery journey. The reality for many rough sleepers is they cannot commit to such
a journey as they need their drugs to get through the day.

A commitment to your treatment is shown by the establishment of pre contemplation
groups and the demand that individuals attend various sessions designed to help
them on their recovery journey. Rough Sleepers are not terribly good at making
appointments of these appointments are not set in relation to the rough sleepers time
scale but on the restricted opening hours of the service. The other critical issue is
identification, often verified by an address. This is important to ensure they are
eligible for treatment and they are not been scripted elsewhere but obviously for a
rough sleeper can be a significant hurdle.

Rough Sleepers with co-occurring conditions often take drugs to deal with their
condition. They are not being assessed by mental health services and are thus self-
medicating. The drugs or the alcohol makes them feel better in a certain moment of
time in a way that a prescribed drug will not. Methadone takes away the craving for
example but it does not give the high or the comfort of heroin. So if the drug is
available and they have any money they will want to use this. This pattern of drug
use for many prescribers is unacceptable and treatment is often withdrawn from
people who consistently continue to use illegal drugs despite been prescribed. |
think there is genuine concern but it is also used as a means to get difficult and
demanding clients off the programme. The reality of drug treatment is often people
are given lower doses than required because the prescriber can demonstrate that
clients are doing well by reducing their script and the user can benefit by taking
drugs on top and still get an effect,. There should be an emphasis on maximum
rather than minimum prescribing. It is my view that a person taking illegal drugs
alongside prescribed ones should be permitted to stay on a treatment programme
because evidence shows they are still safer in treatment than out of it. That when
providing a substitute medication if someone is not fit to take it when presenting
there may be a delay to them receiving their medication until they are in a better
state but it is not stopped entirely. | also believe that instead of penalising the person
there should be a conversation about whether the dose prescribed is sufficient and
look at increasing the dose rather than withdrawing treatment.

| am seeing some exciting work beginning which may however help rough sleepers
with co-occurring problems.

Pack Page 15



The Housing First initiatives could be really positive and are only just emerging.
Evaluating their success is extremely important. In Gwent additional funding has
been made available to provide low threshold prescribing (Low threshold means less
rules in place to access treatment) for 25 people who gain access to Housing
through Pobl and their Housing First programme. The link between housing, drug
use and mental health is really key and it is very heartening to see. There are some
initiatives supported by Supporting People as well, one in North Wales which we
support is an example as there is another in Torfaen. The problem with some
supporting peoples contract is the issue of salary and the ability the attract workers
with the right experience and training. A similar Housing First initiative is due to start
in Swansea and Kaleidoscope is working with the Wallich on this initiative

In Brixton, London there is a one day prescribing service. The need for rapid access
is particularly relevant to rough sleepers and the recognition of treatment access is
now becoming a Welsh Government priority. The problem in Wales is the patchy
nature of it, which disproportionately impacts on the furthest away from treatment
which is sadly rough sleepers.| think treatment services need to be integrated with
mental health services and are open at times that meet the needs of the service user
rather than the needs of the staff. | think we also need to understand that consulting
with rough sleepers about the service they want is critical and this may mean we
have to think boldly with options such as safer places to take drugs which Scottish
Government is supporting.

The continued increase in drug related deaths is a National Emergency in my view
and | believe the biggest cause of death is the failure to provide even basic medical
care such as substitute prescribing across Wales. | would strongly urge a National
rather than a regional approach. A recent paper by the ACMD (Advisory Council on
Drug Misuse) notes that rough sleepers have high levels of mental health and
substance issue problems and sadly are the most likely group to have premature
death. They argue for a National rather than a regional approach.

« To what extent are integrated mental health and substance misuse
services accessible and how can such services be delivered more
effectively to address the specific needs of rough sleepers in
particular?

The key problem we face as an agency is that mental health services will not see

eople who are either drug or alcohol, dependent. | met with a worker from -
A o o i [ but hac a serious glcoho
issue. She recently had some counselling from Simplyhealth, which Kaleidoscope
makes available for its entire staff, but she is still waiting for an NHS referral for
counselling. She found the whole process deeply frustrating because she knew her
alcohol use, was to deal with her mental health issue. So not tackling her mental
health issues was extremely unhelpful. In the worst moments of her chaos she was
sofa surfer which of course increased of vulnerability. It cannot be right that to get
any proper help for her mental health issues, she in effect had to rely on private
health care provided by her new employer. In Gwent there is close working with
GSSMS (Gwent Specialist Substance Misuse Service) who try and support the most

Pack Page 16



challenging clients. The integration of services is probably the best in Wales but
even GSSMS struggle to make referrals to the mental health services.

In other parts of Wales the treatment system is not properly integrated and the more
providers involved in care the more gaps there are. So in Cardiff for example we
provide services in Dyfodol (prescribing) for people involved in the criminal justice
system. We also are now supported to provide some rapid access into prescribing
but of its self this is not enough. This is because such treatment tis not integrated
with the Cardiff Addictions Unit, which provides community prescribing but there is a
waiting list hence the need for our rapid prescribing services, you then have around
5 or 6 voluntary agencies all with a slight variation of the service they provide.

There is little evidence of integrated services that combines mental health and
substance use across Wales. On asking my managers across Wales they could not
pinpoint one official support service that is specifically for rough sleepers with co-
occurring mental health and substance misuse issues. There are a number of
services that support rough sleepers that will also help people with mental health
issues such as the Wallich but these services are not specifically focused on mental
health issues. In Gwent with GDAS (Gwent Drug and Alcohol Service) there is a Co-
occurring Nurse who will support rough sleepers who have mental health issues on
her caseload but this is not her focus. Our Bluelight worker also supports the client
group when they are referred to him and they do form a large part of his

caseload. They are not however mental health or accommodation specialists.

In Gwent to be with the specialist service, GSSMS, you need to have support from
the primary mental health service (CMHT) and have a Community Psychiatric

Nurse. You need to engage with this services assessment process to get support. If
you miss two appointments you are discharged. You will then need to provide 3 urine
samples to access the service. There is a fundamental issue with giving and keeping
appointments that the homeless struggle with. For those who end up in prison, which
is the sad reality for many of our rough sleepers with co-occurring issues you are
discharged by the mental health service, you are then discharged from GSSMS. On
release, you are picked up by GDAS and the merry go round starts again. GDAS
have to get them back with primary mental health services in order to receive
services from GSSMS.

While they are with GDAS (a Kaleidoscope led consortium) they will receive support
from our co-occurring nurse but if they do not make treatment gains (they won't as
they live on the streets!) they are then discharged from us. In reality, we string this
out as long as possible keeping them in IRIS (our Criminal Justice Service) way past
the 24-week programme in an attempt to get them back with GSSMS, but sooner or
later they are discharged and we don’t see them again until they are sent back and
released from prison.

On asking about the situation in Gwent the following question was asked

How can such services be delivered more effectively to address the specific needs
of rough sleepers in particular?

Pack Page 17



« Harm reduction treatment goals (nondependent on abstinence) in treatment
services that encourages engagement on harm reduction basis to prevent
losing people from treatment.

« Mental Health support within the substance treatment programme - Mental
health Drug Nurses within treatment service and staff who are trained to
provide mental health support

« A No unplanned discharge approach that does not allow mental health and
substance misuse services to discharge people who fail to attend
appointments. The emphasis is placed on service to see people and
people can only be discharged if it can be shown that they no longer need
support or are opting out of engaging.

« An assertive outreach approach for both support and treatment - supporting
people from the street. Meeting people in their environment, on-street
assessments, no sending appointments by letter, no discharge for failing to
attend.

« Flexibility within appointment times and places. Planned exits into the main
stream services

« Rapid access to alcohol detox where appropriate

« Rapid access to relapse prevention medication where appropriate

« System navigator to support engagement

« Better links with housing services

« Systems that provide housing first, that are closely entwined with mental
health and substance misuse support.

« Access to tier four detox and rehab

The situation in Gwent is much better than elsewhere in Wales but it still is not good
enough. The link between Criminal Justice Services, which we provide across Wales
needs to be properly integrated with the NHS treatment system with rapid access
into mental health services. In North Wales the co-location of services in Wrexham
could be a useful start in that process. The problem of access to treatment is still an
issue and the Police Crime Commissioner in his new service is placing that
responsibility with the new provider. The reason for this is frustration at the slowness
in meeting the need.

In Swansea and Western Bay we see increased drug related deaths but with little
strategy as how to tackle this issue. The current system is not fit for purpose where
access to rapid and low threshold treatment is vital.

The accommodation on offer for people with co-occurring issues is sub-standard.
There is a need for specialist provision with trained workers in small cluster housing
that offer long term support. The concept of big hostels, with workers barely paid
above the minimum wage, with relatively poor training programmes is not
acceptable.

In Kingston we provide a co-occurring hostel, where we take 16 residents. It is a
relatively unique centre because of this specialism but it is supported by Kingston
because the merry go round this service users face and the cost of supporting such
clients in an ad hoc way is more costly. A centre that works closely with the
Community Mental Health Team and the local substance use team does have

Pack Page 18



positive outcomes, in the sense this group of people do not end up in either prison or
on the streets as rough sleepers. The building the service is held in however is not
up to the standard needed and we are looking at providing a new build in partnership
with the local authority.

Another key service needed is rapid access into detox provision. The problem faced
by many rough sleepers is that they struggle to enter treatment at all, so a referral to
detox is extremely unlikely. This issue is compounded by a commissioning regime
that wants a plan as to their long term recovery. The rough sleeper who is only
planning from day to day is going to struggle to meet these goals. | think we need to
think differently about pathways to this basic health care intervention. In the Wirral
they have a unique system where A&E can make a direct referral to the detox centre
and it is seen as the pathway for chaotic drinkers. This takes the pressure off A&E
but more importantly means the client gets the direct support they need and can be
assessed by a professional team of specialist doctors, nurses and drug workers. The
system fits within the treatment regime and therefore people can then be supported
by the community drugs team who also will be part of the system. The barriers to
accommodation become less because they have at least a brief period of treatment
and a plan working with them can be agreed.

The accommodation provided for people who are rough sleepers also needs to have
a wet provision, meaning they can take alcohol in a safe way. We also need to
consider safe places to consume drugs as too many people are evicted for taking
drugs in the hostel. The perverse issue is a drug agency will give people a needle
knowing they are in emergency accommodation where drug use is forbidden and
therefore either accept by taking their drugs they will be evicted from their temporary
home or return to their rough sleeping friends and take those drugs back on the
street. In effect we need a systems approach to tackling the issue rather than solving
one problem but creating a number of further problems.

Pack Page 19



By virtue of paragraph(s) ix of Standing Order 17.42

Document is Restricted

Pack Page 20



Papur 2 - Huggard

Paper2 - Huggard

Huggard’s Update to Inform the Welsh Government Inquiry

into Rough Sleeping: November 2019

1. Introduction:
1.1 Huggard’s purpose is to tackle homelessness and improve individual wellbeing.
1.2 Our Values:

1.3

1.4

15

To provide safe spaces for visitors, residents and staff that meet the needs of,
and provide opportunities to, people who have experienced homelessness.

To be welcoming and provide environments that are psychologically informed,
recognising that many of the people we work with have experienced trauma in
their lives.

To support people by providing emotional and practical help based around
person centred services.

To empower staff, and those that use our services, recognising and developing
strengths and personal capacity so that those using our services can live more
independently and sustainably.

To work collaboratively with those that use our services and with partners to
maximise opportunities and resources.

To continually improve what we do, adapting to changing needs, managing
opportunities and avoiding complacency.

Huggard runs a low threshold Day Centre for people that are experiencing

homelessness. People access the Day Centre to take advantage of high-quality cooked

meals, washing/showering and laundry facilities and a clothes store as well as to take

advantage of specialist services focussing on advocacy, benefit advice and support,

personal/social development and substance misuse support.

The centre provides a hub and a place of engagement for people who are experiencing

homelessness or need support to maintain or secure accommodation. Most people

using Huggard’s Day Centre are either sleeping rough or in emergency or temporary

accommodation.

From April through to the end of September 2019, Huggard’s Day Centre saw 12,579

visits from 827 individuals compared to 10,351 visits from 797 individuals over the same
period in 2018.

2. Current Situation with Regards to Co-occurring Substance Misuse and
Mental Health Problems among People Sleeping Rough:

Pack Page 34



Papur 2 - Huggard
Paper2 - Huggard

2.1 Huggard provides a psychologically aware support service for people sleeping rough with
substance misuse issues alongside providing a Needle Syringe Programme 24/7. Our
needle exchange is the busiest across Cardiff and the Vale and the provision of harm
reduction services provides access to support services to many individuals who are not
engaging with any other service. It provides an ideal opportunity for brief intervention
work for people who are in the pre-contemplation stage of engaging in treatment
services.

2.2 We recognise that many of the people that use our substance misuse services have co-
occurring mental health issues. Huggard’s substance misuse co-ordinator has an MScin
Health Psychology and we seek to ensure that the service is both trauma informed and
sensitive to the mental health needs of clients. This service provides 1-2-1 sessions
following a person-centred care plan approach to address their substance misuse.

2.3 Huggard also works with Cardiff Council’s Multi-Disciplinary Team which employs a
specialist substance misuse worker and a trained counsellor. The counsellor provides
regular drop in sessions within Huggard’s Day Centre. This provides an opportunity for
us to help clients with co-occurring mental health and substance misuse issues within an
open access, low threshold, environment.

2.4 Outside of Huggard services, and from our experience to date within Cardiff, there are
services available that can help individuals who experience issues with either substance
misuse or mental health, however, we do not have an integrated service that delivers
support for both. This often leads to mental health services not accepting referrals
because the individual is using substances. This is a real problem for our client group
who often present with a co-occurring substance misuse and mental health issue, and
thus are not receiving the support they really need.

2.5 For our clients the services available for substance misuse include:

° Entry to Drug and Alcohol Services (EDAS): There is an EDAS worker that is based
within the MDT that Huggard links in with and who will attend the Huggard to
support people to get a quick assessment to be referred to treatment services.
We also support those who are less chaotic to attend drop-in clinics with EDAS
based on St Andrews Place, again to complete assessments to be referred to
treatment services. Even though this is a quick propose, the treatment services
have long waiting lists.

° Community Addictions Unit (CAU): Accept referrals from EDAS. They offer
maintenance prescribing for opiate dependent individuals and detox
programmes for those dependent alcohol. This includes group work, in
preparation for completing a detox. Although we value this service, the waiting
lists for even a first assessment to gain a substitute opioid prescription have
been as a high as 20 months. This is not effective for our client group, where

Pack Page 35



Papur 2 - Huggard

Paper2 - Huggard

motivation can often be fleeting and where services need to act quickly when
someone is ready to make change.

Dyfodol: Offer maintenance prescribing for opiate dependent individuals who
are engaged with the criminal justice system. They are piloting a Rapid Access
Prescribing Service (RAPS) which offer a much quicker route to prescribing.
However, this can still take 2 — 3 weeks. Again, we would argue that prescribing
needs to be quicker.

Taith — Offer psychosocial support including 1-2-1 and group work for those
looking to make a positive change with their substance use.

2.6 For mental health:

Individuals can be referred to the Community Mental Health Team. However,
we are unable to refer in. Referrals must be from that persons GP, which can
often be another barrier to engaging with mental health services.

Cardiff MIND: Offer group work, 1-2-1 and counselling. We have referred clients
to this service.

2.7 As great as the above services for both substance misuse and mental health are, they try

to implement structure to an often chaotic cohort of people. At Huggard we try to

support individuals to navigate the often complex systems in place. This can include

liaising with the other services, recording appointments time and dates and providing

reminders and even support to attend such appointments.

How can Services be Delivered More Effectively to Address the Specific

Needs of People Sleeping Rough?

3.1 Training: Substance misuse services should be better trained to recognise and support

3.2

3.3

clients with mental health issues and conversely mental health services should be better

trained in supporting clients with substance misuse issues so that, for clients with co-

occurring substance misuse and mental health issues, services take a ‘no wrong door’

approach.

Enhance Low Threshold Support: outreach and open access services provide

unparalleled opportunities to engage with people sleeping rough with co-occurring

mental health and substance misuse issues. This opportunity needs to be better

embraced with additional resources to support brief intervention work.

Fast Tracking: for clients with a long history of mental health and/or substance misuse

issues there should be a facility to grasp fleeting opportunities for immediate referral

into treatment and prescribing services.

Pack Page 36



Papur 2 - Huggard
Paper2 - Huggard

3.4

3.5

Direct Referral: appropriately trained specialist substance misuse staff should be able to
refer directly to the Mental Health Team without the necessity of going through a GP
service which can represent a further barrier that an individual with a chaotic life may

not be able to manage.

Flexibility: recognition that clients with complex and chaotic lives need support to
undertake often simple tasks. Services that need to work to a given structure may, by
their very nature, put up barriers. Services need to take a psychologically informed and
trauma aware approach, recognising that people sleeping rough may miss appointments
or may need to access services at unspecified times. Services should try to take this into
account and avoid, where possible, closing cases due to missed appointments or being
too rigid in their working practices. This could include working in more accessible venues
such as Huggard’s Day Centre when this can support better engagement.

Richard Edwards, Huggard Chief Executive, November 2019.

Pack Page 37



Papur 3 - Cydweithfa Gofal Cymunedol
Paper 3 - Community Care Collaborative

Daring to be different — An Update

Community Care Collaborative CIC (CCC) is a Community Interest

Company that will shortly be operating at scale in the Borough of

Wrexham. CCC’s vision is to develop and deliver innovative models

of community-based care taking a ‘whole-person’ approach of
addressing people’s physical health, mental health and social needs together. CCC does this
through working collaboratively with statutory agencies, voluntary and community groups,
patients and individuals.

Who we are

Community Care Collaborative CIC (CCC) is a social enterprise. CCC aims to act as a vehicle to
enable partnership working between the public, voluntary and private sectors to develop and
deliver an innovative, person centred, social model of care transforming the traditional model of
primary care in Wales. We work for the benefit of the community and as an asset locked
organisation any surpluses we make is reinvested in the enterprise.

Led by Dr Karen Sankey, CCC is engineering a different way of delivering primary care. Karen has
secured the support of many clinicians, agencies and voluntary and community groups. Capacity:
The Public Services Lab is supporting CCC, providing back room support and business acumen to

help make the vision a reality. (www.capacitylab.co.uk)

CCCis a part employee owned organisation with a flat , non hierarchical structure. The current
Directors are John Gallanders, Chris Catterall, Dr Karen Sankey and Vicky Varley of
Handelsbanken.

CCC has appointed Dewi Richards , previously a manager within the Mental Heath directorate as
Service Director and Dr Aboul Shaheir a very experienced and respected local GP as Clinical
Director.

Currently, CCC has an informal membership which includes a diverse range of professionals many
of whom work for local public, private and third sector organisations. Membership also includes
patients, service users and community activists.

What we do
CCC:
e Delivers a holistic, streamlined MDT service that meets the medical, social and
psychological needs of the local community
e Engages with vulnerable, hard to reach groups and those with complex needs to ensure
they receive the care they need
e Uses a strengths-based approach to educate and empower both the people we work with
and the people we provide services to increase their resilience and ability to self-care

Community Care Hub

Dr Sankey, in partnership with staff from BCU Mental Health team and The Wallich originally
established the Community Care Hub. Now managed by CCC, the Hub has enabled CCC to test its
social model of primary care. CCC is now working closely with the Mental Health directorate,
Glyndwr University and others to replicate the Hub model and provide easily accessible and
streamlined services for other identified cohorts.

Pack Page 38



CCC has secured funding for the Hub totalling £94,000. This has enabled us to employ three Care
Navigators who work as front-line staff at the Community Care Hub working closely with the
delivery agencies and welcoming attendees and signposting them to the most appropriate service.
CCC is keen to provide all individuals with the support and opportunities they need to become the
best versions of themselves that they can be. CCC actively recruits frontline staff from diverse
professional backgrounds and individuals with lived experience to accommodate the range of
needs that our service users have. CCC also offers volunteering and placement opportunities
which may be used as a stepping stone into employed work. The two lead Care Navigators at the
Community Care Hub have backgrounds in reoffender rehabilitation, substance misuse,
homelessness and counselling providing a diverse mix of experience and skill sets

Primary Care

CCCis currently in the process of taking over three GP surgeries in Wrexham (Hillcrest , Forge road
and Borras surgeries) and will be delivering primary care services (including many of the innovative
approaches developed at the Hub) to a total patient population of over 17,000.

CCC plans to design and build two Health and Wellbeing centres in which to locate its surgeries as
well as a range of acute and mainstream health, social and welfare services. These Community
Health and Wellbeing centres will be in Brynteg and the town centre

Working Collaboratively

CCCis a member of the 2025 movement which aspires to eliminate preventable health equalities
in North Wales. Under the 2025 banner CCC is part of an alliance of likeminded individuals and
organisations with a shared vision and purpose to make a difference for the people in Wrexham.

The Office for the Future Generations Commissioner has identified CCC’s work as a potential “Art
of the Possible” project.

CCC actively works with: The Salvation Army, the Community Health Council, local Councillors ,
AVOW, Clwyd Alyn Housing, Shelter, Nacro, KIM, Do it, Mind , Glyndwr University , Coleg
Cambria, Do Well, BCU mental health directorate and SMS services , GP clusters and surgeries,
Public Health Wales, AA, Women’s Aid, Same but different and many others

At a strategic level CCCs approach and model have attracted interest from the Welsh Government,
BCU, DWP, NW Police and the Police and Crime Commissioner all of whom see the potential of
CCCs model to transform primary care in Wales. Dr Sankey is currently a member of the Future
Generations Commissioner for Wales health Review Steering group and also sits on the Health and
Care sub group for the Housing First network.

Karen was awarded a High Sheriff award for her work to establish the Hub in 2018 and in
November the Community Care Hub won the BCUHB Achievement Award for Partnership
working.In 2019 the CCC won the Police and Crime Commissioners award for partnership working
at the Community Care Hub.

CCC’s priorities for the next 12 months
e To complete the transition of the three GP surgeries from BCU to CCC ownership
e Toimplement the CCC social model of Primary Care

Pack Page 39



e To purchase Forge Road medical centre and work with partners to develop a state-of-the-
art Health & Wellbeing centre

e To continue to deliver and develop the Community Care Hub and the links into Primary
Care and mental health and SMS services, to formalise delivery arrangements and secure
funding

e To replicate the Hub “everyone in the room” model in a Primary Care setting for other
groups eg mental health, frail and elderly, chronic disease

Pack Page 40



COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

COMMUNITY CARE
COLLABORATIVE

Hub Summary

'R
Ol e bad

T111

— aJa]aJafa]s




Community Care Collaborative (CCC) - Community Care Hub
Who we are

Community Care Collaborative CIC’s vision is to develop and deliver innovative models of community-
based care taking a ‘whole-person’ approach to addressing people’s physical health, mental health and
social needs together. We do this through working collaboratively with statutory agencies, voluntary
and community groups, patients and individuals. CCC is a social enterprise led by Dr Karen Sankey and
supported by Capacity Public Services Lab (www.capacitylab.co.uk). CCC is engineering a different way
of delivering primary care.

Community Care Hub

The Community Care Hub was established about 18 months ago to meet the needs of Wrexham’s homeless
and rough-sleeping population. Wrexham has the highest number of rough sleepers in North Wales and the
second highest nationally. High levels of social deprivation in the county leave many at risk. Overall ~¥30% of
local areas (LSOAs) in Wrexham are in the top 20% of housing deprivation nationally, and two-thirds are in
the top 50%.

The Hub is a multi agency weekly drop in held every Friday morning at the Salvation Army. In the Hub, CCC
has developed a model of delivery called ‘Everyone in the room’. CCC identified that people in need were
often shunted from pillar to post unable to get the help they needed when they needed it, and this often
made the problems they faced worse. ‘Everyone in the Room’ brings all the agencies that aim to work with
homeless and rough sleepers together in one room, once a week. This way, a person in need can come to
the Hub and see all the agencies that they need to see in one go. The Hub brings together a range of
agencies including:

e GP e Job Centre Plus e NACRO e Harm Reduction
e Probation e Women’s Aid e Podiatry e Substance
Misuse
e Mental Health e Housing: WCBC e Homeless e Salvation Army
Team and Clwyd Alyn Charities
e Specialist e The Salvation
Health Visitors Army

Care Navigators (made up of CCC staff and volunteers) coordinate the Hub and befriend anyone attending who
just wants to talk. The Hub treats people with respect and encourages them to take control of both their care and
their life and to move away from dependency on services. Many of the people attending the Hub have made
positive steps in their lives because they have had access to the support they need, when they need it. Itis in
recognition of this that CCC is developing a ‘Lived-Experience’ peer led approach to enable Hub participants to
make sustainable changes through engaging in meaningful, progressive activity including education, volunteering
and employment.

Pack Page 42


http://www.capacitylab.co.uk/

Community Care Hub Theory of Change

Local Homeless and Rough

Sleeper Population

access The Hub every Friday

|

Key
Care Navigators
Service users have a single
Inputs point of contact to navigate EIR
\ agencies J
‘ Activities |
N CMHT WCBG Clwyd
s : heter GP Mental DWP = Probation  Wrex. Alyn
‘Assumptions: ymru Health Council Outreach
____________ SMS .
Kindness The Harm
EIR Model AVOW Substance [ Wallich CANIAD ARCH Reduction
Misuse
LLIETE Wellbeing
Assessments Cafe Health Checks Care Coordinators
Identifying emotional | |offering opportunities |dentifying physical primary and
QOutcomes health needs and to socialise and health needs and secondary care
signposting to access nuiritious signposting to clinicians handling
Accountability appropriate service meals appropriate service |  more complex cases
line \

"Everyone in the Room"”
reduces barriers to services
resulting in lower waiting

v times and fewer missed

! appointmenis

5

Improved access to
accommodation, welfare
benefits, employment,
education and training

Improved access to health
and social services that
meet service user's needs

—

Increased stability for
service users
who in turn are befter able to
access mainstream services

Impact

The Community Care Hub provides faster, coordinated, and resource efficient support for the county’s
homeless and rough-sleeper population. This is achieved through two elements unique to The Hub: delivery
model and ethos. At the core of our ethos, we believe people are best served when services are accessible,
person-centred and de-medicalised. By recognising the people who come through our door as equals,
struggling to get out of the cycle of homelessness, we are better able to identify their individual needs and
keep people engaged with support. Our unique delivery model aims to meet those individual needs by
using an “everybody in the room” approach. Ultimately, through the “everybody in the room” model and
our person-centred ethos, we’re transforming the model of primary care in Wales, improving wellbeing and
opportunities for stability, while lowering demand on primary care, statutory and emergency services.

CCC believes from anecdotal evidence from service users and feedback from partner agencies that the
Community Care Hub is making a real difference. For example, the police have reported a 42% drop in activity
with this cohort over the last 12 months.We believe that the Hub results in:

e Increased stability for service users

-

| Acceszible, de-medicalised,

¢ person-centred care model :
leaves services users feeling @
+ more valued, respected and

listenad to

Improved wellbeing and
reduced social isolation
Engagement in meaningiul
activity and greater ability to
self-care

Reduced demand on
primary and secondary
care, and statutory and

emergency services

‘Everyone in the Room"
allows agencies to

= communicate and develop

links

Improved partnership
working
Services are betier able to
provide joined-up wrap-
around care through a
collaborative pathway

v

A transformed model of
primary care in Wales

e Reduced demand on primary and secondary care and emergency services

e Atransformed model of primary care

Pack Page 43



We are currently undertaking a full Impact Assessment which will collect and analyse data
that we have collected at the Hub and evidence from our partners to identify the impact on
the service user and on the agencies delivering services through the Hub.

Replication

CCC recognises that the model and the ethos employed at the hub is replicable for other vulnerable groups
of service users. Using the learning from the Hub this model could be used with, for example:

Offenders

People with mental health problems
People who are socially isolated
Primary Care frequent attenders

Older people and people with dementia

CCC will soon be piloting a weekly Hub for people suffering from anxiety and mental health problems
where we can test the replicability of the model to other vulnerable groups

Pack Page 44



COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Community Care Hub
Evaluation Summary
2019




Contents

Foreword

The Community Care
Collaborative

Acknowledgements
What is the Community Care Hub?
Everyone in the Room
What does The Hub do?
What is the need for The Hub?
Who accesses The Hub?
Meet Billy and Helen
What does The Hub achieve?
Social Value
Learning
What’s next?

About the authors

00 7/ ~Pack Paged

Al

a]a]a]a]a]a] N

03

03

03

04

06

07

10

13

18

20

25

27

29

3]

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC




Foreword

Dr. Karen Sankey
Founder, Community Care
Collaborative

“ I am delighted with what Community Care
Collaborative has achieved at The Hub in
partnership with the Salvation Army and
AVOW, as well as with a wide range of
voluntary and statutory partners.

| strongly believe that The Hub is an innovative
model of primary care offering an accessible,
holistic, person-centred approach that meets
the health and wellbeing needs of some of the
most vulnerable people in the community. It
is wonderful to see that this belief has been
evidenced by this impact assessment.

Community Care Collaborative looks forward
to working with partners to build on our
success and hopes to see this model of
working being utilised to address the health
and wellbeing needs of the wider community.

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Mark Drakeford

First Minister of Wales

€ € The multi-agency approach here, with
everyone available in one place to provide
vital advice and support, is exemplary. There
are a number of complex reasons why people
find themselves homeless and it is important
they have the opportunity to access the right
support at the right time - as they do here.

Community Care Collaborative

Community Care Collaborative CIC (CCC) is a social enterprise that aims to enable partnership working
between the public, voluntary and private sectors to develop and deliver an innovative, person-centred, social
model of care, transforming the traditional model of primary care in Wales. Working for the benefit of the

community and as an asset locked organisation, any surpluses we make are reinvested into the enterprise.

CCC's vision is to develop and deliver new models of community-based care taking a ‘whole-person’ approach
to addressing people’s physical health, mental health and social needs together. CCC does this through
working collaboratively with statutory agencies, voluntary and community groups, patients and individuals.

Acknowledgements

Sincere thanks to the staff, volunteers and delivery
partners at The Community Care Hub for the time
and feedback they provided. Sincere thanks also
to service users for their willingness to take part

in this evaluation and share their experiences and
opinions openly and honestly.

This report contains public sector information
licensed under the Open Government Licence v3.0.

Full report

This document is a summary of the full Community
Care Hub evaluation. The full evaluation report can
be read online at ccc-wales.org/insights.

Disclaimer: All views and any errors contained in
this report are the responsibility of the authors.
The views expressed should not be assumed to be
those of Community Care Collaborative CIC or any
of the key informants who assisted with this work.

Pack Page 47



Whatis the

Community
Care Hub?

7



What is the € -

Community Care Hub?

The Community Care Hub (“The Hub”) is run by the
Community Care Collaborative CIC (CCC), a social
enterprise created to redesign the way primary
care is delivered in Wrexham, in partnership with
the Salvation Army and AVOW, supported by
Capacity: The Public Services Lab.

CCC and The Hub were set up by Dr. Karen Sankey,
an experienced GP who came to the realisation
that many of the patients she saw daily did not
need medical help. What Karen saw was that
many patients need someone to talk to; someone
to find out what matters to them. Once this is
established, the patient can be directed to the
most appropriate source of support, which is often
not the GP.

Seeing that these social determinants of health
and wellbeing would be better addressed by a
broader range of agencies, and that many people
in Wrexham faced additional barriers to accessing
the services they need, Karen realised that a
collaborative approach was required, bringing
agencies together to provide more holistic
person-centred services.

In June 2017, a multi-agency event facilitated
by Sergeant Vic Powell of North Wales Police
brought together a range of services that were
separately trying to engage with homeless and
rough sleeping people. This event highlighted
the excessive demand on community, primary
care and emergency services created because
people were missing appointments due to their
circumstances and as a result of long waiting
times, resulting in the loss of benefits and people
being without medication.

$

7/

f X
® ®
(a]a]a]a]a]a}

As a result of this event, Dr. Sankey saw an
opportunity to test out a new approach to
working with homeless people whilst developing
a model that could be applied to primary care

in Wrexham. In partnership with Tanya Jones

of the homelessness charity “The Wallich” and
Dewi Richards of Betsi Cadwaladr University
Health Board (BCUHB) Mental Health Service, Dr.
Sankey established the Crisis Café in Ty Croeso in
June 2017. The Crisis Cafe was so successful that
in January 2018 the service needed to move to
larger premises. Finding a home at the Salvation
Army Headquarters, the café was re-branded

as the Community Care Hub, recognising that
the service had not only reduced the number of
crises being experienced but was a wide-reaching
service for those at risk of homelessness as well.

The ‘Crisis Cafe’ was so successful

that in January 2018 the service
needed to move to larger premises.

7/,
2l




Whatis the

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Community Care Hub?

Everyone in the Room

The Hub is brought to life through an innovative
delivery model, which the team call Everyone

in the Room. This model sees The Hub provide
clinical, social, and economic support to the
homeless and rough sleepers of Wrexham in
partnership, bringing together a wide range of
agencies including: The Salvation Army, Primary
Care (GP), BCUHB Teams (including mental health,

harm reduction, district nurses, and health visitors),

Wrexham County Borough Council’s (WCBC)
Housing team, Job Centre Plus and voluntary
organisations (including Hafal, Kaleidoscope,
NACRO and AVOW, amongst others).

Council
services

Mental
health

This Everyone in the Room approach offers open
access services in one place, at one time, enabling
the agencies to provide services efficiently and

cost effectively, whilst meeting the immediate
needs of homeless people. This is done in a friendly,
non-judgemental environment which encourages
engagement, social interaction and the building

of trust between agencies and homeless people
leading to tangible positive outcomes.

Social
housing

Harm
reduction

Probation

Pack Page 50



What does
The Hub do?

|




What does The .
Hub do?

The Hub is a service, providing homeless and rough-sleepers in Wrexham with support and services that
they often have difficulty accessing. Currently, The Hub runs every Friday, utilising space provided by The
Salvation Army in Wrexham town centre. The Hub’s key focus is on homelessness but is open to all, with
no access criteria used, which is key to its ethos.

Ethos

The ethos of The Hub centres around the belief to and in turn feel valued and respected, they will
that participant’s needs are best served in an be more likely to remain engaged and therefore
accessible, person-centred and de-medicalised better able to achieve stability. A study by Glyndwr

environment. Hub staff and volunteers take a University on homelessness in Wrexham found
relaxed, social approach to care provision, opting “centrality, accessibility” and “inclusive, empathic
for mutual trust, respect, and cooperation rather and helpful attitudes of front line staff delivering
than rules, restrictions and red tape. The Hub’s staff services” were key factors in engaging the homeless
and volunteers believe that if people accessing the  population with services', and is exactly what The
service are afforded an opportunity to be listened Hub aims to provide.

Key Local Homeless and Rough
. O Sleeper Population

access The Hub every Friday
Inputs Activities EIR Model Assumptions

Outputs Outcomes :A;:;:ountability line Care Navigators
Service users have a single point of
contact to navigate EIR agencies
Shelter CMHT Mental . WCBC Wrex. Clwyd Alyn
Cymru cP Health 2L Probation Council Outreach
SMS . .
Kindness in The Harm
AVOW Suh?iss?sr;ce Mind Wallich CANIAD ARCH Reduction

Cafe
Offering opportunities
to socialise and access
nutritious meals

Health Checks
Identifying physical health
needs and signposting to
appropriate service

Care Coordinators
Primary and Secondary
care clinicians handling
more complex cases

Wellbeing Assessments
Identifying emotional health
needs and signposting to
appropriate service

Improved wellbeing Improved partnership working
and reduced Services are better able to
social isolation provide joined-up
Engagement in wraparound care through a
meaningful activity collaborative pathway

Improved access to Improved access to
health and social accommodation, welfare
services that meet benefits, employment,
service user’s needs education and training

Increased stability for S Reduced demand on .
service users : primary and secondary B A transformed model of
Who in turn are better able to . care, and statutory and R primary care in Wales
access mainstream services . emergency services .

"Hughes, C., Dubberley, S., Anderson, M. and Parry, O. (2012), ‘Homelessness in Wrexham: Contemporary patterns and profiles of homeless 8
people with complex needs.” Report to Wrexham Temperance Hall Trust, Wrexham County Borough Council and Wrexham and Flintshire
Community Safety Office.




What does The
Hub do?

Goal

The goal of The Hub is to provide a space in

which homeless people and rough sleepers

can take positive steps toward the best version

of themselves, achieving greater stability and
wellbeing. For wider local systems it aims to
transform the model of primary care in Wales, in
turn, reducing demand on statutory, primary and
emergency care. Ultimately, The Hub wants to
help people facing homelessness get to a place
where they can get on the right path to having
meaningful activities, relationships, and stability;
or, “‘somewhere to live, something to do, someone
to love” as Hub co-founder Dr. Karen Sankey puts it.

Partner agencies

Currently, The Hub has an average of 21 partner agencies attending each week with other services

COMMUNITY
CARE

COLLABORATIVE

attending either bi-weekly or monthly as demand or capacity allows.

Agencies include:

CIC

Organisation or agency Service provided

Community Care Collaborative CIC

Coordination and development of Hub

Dr. Karen Sankey from Hillcrest Surgery

Primary care

North Wales Police

Police community support

District Nurses and Health visitors, BCUHB

Health care advice and support

Mental Health Team, BCUHB

Mental health support

Substance Misuse Service, BCUHB

Substance misuse support

Harm Reduction Team, BCUHB

Substance misuse & harm reduction support

Podiatry, BCUHB

Foot care

The Salvation Army

Practical support and help

Department of Work and Pensions (DWP)

Welfare and benefit support

HMP Berwyn Probation Service

Probation services

Clwyd Alyn Housing Association

Housing support

Wrexham County Borough Council

Housing services

NACRO Supported housing services
Shelter Cymru Homelessness and housing advice
Hafal Mental Health Support

Association of Voluntary Organisations in Wrexham (AVOW)

Voluntary services & support; Carers services

CANIAD Service user and carer involvement service
CAIS Independent living service
Women'’s Aid Domestic violence support
Pack Page 53



NN

Whatis the
need for The

Hub?




What s the need for

The Hub?

Homelessness is devastating and life changing.
Research shows that people affected by
homelessness are ten times more likely to die than
those of a similar age in the general population?
and are much more likely to be affected by mental
health and long-term health conditions. There are
many reasons why a person could be homeless,
and it is possible for anybody to become homeless.

Homelessness refers to a range of scenarios, including
rough sleeping (i.e. rooflessness; sleeping without
any shelter, sofa surfing); houselessness (with a

place to sleep but temporary in institutions or
shelter); living in insecure housing (threatened with
severe exclusion due to insecure tenancies, eviction,
domestic violence); and living in inadequate housing
(in caravans on illegal campsites, in unfit housing, in
extreme overcrowding).

Statutory homelessness

Statutory homelessness refers to those to whom
the local authority owes a duty under the Housing
(Wales) Act 2014. According to figures from

the Welsh Government*, during 2017-18 there
were 183 households threatened with statutory
homelessness in Wrexham, of which only 78 cases
(43%) were successfully prevented within 56 days.
Of the 1,194 applications, 528 (44%) cases were
successfully prevented or relieved.

Statutory homelessness: threatened

with homelessness 2017-18

Households found to be threatened with

homelessness during the year (Section 66) 183

During the same year, up to a total of 840

households were assessed to be homeless:
Statutory homelessness: threatened 2017-18

with homelessnhess

Households found to be eligible,
unintentionally homeless and in priority 12
need during the year (Section 75)

Households found to be eligible,
homeless subject to duty to help to
secure during the year (Section 73)

783

Households found to be eligible,
homeless but not in a priority need 45
or homeless, in a priority need but

intentionally so during the year

Total: 840

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Crisis, the homelessness charity, reports that all
forms of homelessness are increasing across Wales?
and this trend is mirrored in Wrexham. The county
has the highest number of homeless and rough-
sleepers in North Wales, and the second highest
nationally. High levels of social deprivation in the
county leave many at risk. Overall ~30% of local
areas (LSOAs) in Wrexham are in the top 20% of
housing deprivation nationally, and two thirds are
in the top 50%.

Nationally, while there has been a small decrease
in the number of households threatened with
homelessness, the number of households assessed
as being homeless (section 73) and unintentionally
homeless (section 75) has increased. These trends
are mirrored in Wrexham with the number of
households eligible for assistance under sections 73
rising 15% over the first two quarters of 2018/19.

éé

Overall ~30% of local
areas (LSOASs) in

Wrexham are in the
top 20% of housing
deprivation nationally.

Pack Page 55

2 Aldridge, R. et al (2017) ‘Morbidity and mortality in homeless individuals, prisoners, sex workers’, The Lancet Vol 391 (20) 2018 -"
3 Fitzpatrick, S., Pawson, H., Bramley, G., Wilcox, S., Watts, B. & Wood, J. (2017) The Homelessness Monitor: Wales 2017. London: Crisis
“https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Housing/Homelessness/Statutory-Homelessness-Prevention-and-Relief



What is the need for

The Hub?

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Other types of homelessness

Statutory homelessness does not give the full
picture, however, with many people finding

themselves in transient or temporary living
situations. These people are often missed from
official figures. There are many types of temporary
accommodation, including women’s refuge
centres, B&Bs, hostels, hospitals, and night shelters.

According to official figures, 129 households,
including 54 with dependent children, are living in
temporary accommodation in Wrexham. This is an
increase of 23% on the previous quarter, however
this isn’t a trend seen nationally, with the total
number across Wales falling by 1.5%.

2018-19
(Jul-Sep.)

Temporary accommodation

temporarily (inc. 54 families with

Households accommodated
children)

‘ 129 ‘

Many homeless people are unable to access
temporary accommodation. Those without any
form of shelter are often called “street homeless” or
rough sleepers.

Rough sleepers face additional risks to their
health and wellbeing:

Death by unnatural causes has been found to be
four times more common than average amongst
rough sleepers, and suicide 35 times more likely

Rough sleepers are more likely to be assaulted
than the average person

Alcohol and drug problems are very high
amongst rough sleepers, and people being
resettled from the streets are more likely to
face problems sustaining a tenancy if they have
these problems

The prevalence of infectious diseases, such as
tuberculosis, HIV and hepatitis C, is significantly
higher than in the general population

This population experiences poorer oral health
than the general population®

Higher levels of cirrhosis, kidney, and heart
conditions

The 2018-19 count of rough sleepers in Wrexham
reported 24 individuals counted, and an estimated
total of 57. While the individual count is down
45% on the 2017-18 figures, the estimated total
increased by 26%, up from 45 in 2017-18.

éé

The estimated total
increased by 26%, up
from 45 in 2017-18

Pack Page 56

5 Lang, Gill (2017); The impact of homelessness on health: a guide for local authorities; Local Government Association 12



/M

Who accesses
The Hub?

\%




Who accesses
The Hub?

There is no single cause of homelessness and anyone
can find themselves on the streets or in temporary
accommodation. As such, The Hub sees a wide
range of people attending the service every Friday.

The Hub currently has 214 registered services users,
seeing an average of 53 people through the door
every week. Between January and December 2018,
The Hub had approximately 1,843 visits, again
averaging between 50 and 53 visitors a week.

Age & gender

The majority (79%) of those accessing The Hub
are male, while 21% are female. This is generally
consistent with figures from The Wallich’s Rough
Sleeper Intervention Team (RSIT), who produce
the rough sleeper count in Wrexham, which
suggests the gender split is on average 83% male,
17% female®.

Gender Split

21% Female

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Overall, 50% of people accessing The Hub are
between the ages of 33 and 43, with a mode age
of 37. On average, the female cohort is slightly
younger than the male cohort, with most women
being between the ages of 31 and 38, while the
men were generally between 34 and 44.

Housing status

The Hub’s open access policy sees a large variety
of people utilising the service. While the majority
of people were unwilling or unable to provide
details of their housing situation, of those who did
respond, the majority were rough sleeping. 19%

of service users (16% of men and 3% of women)
surveyed at The Hub were without any form of
shelter, while 10% were in a temporary form of
accommodation such as project-based housing or
a night shelter.

The Hub also provides advice and support for those
at risk of homelessness. 14% of those accessing The
Hub report themselves as “accommodated” either
through a private landlord or other means.

Self reported

accommodation
55% Unknhown

O,
‘ 79% Male gé;ﬁ;gh
2% Sofa Surfing
—— 4% Night Shelter
Age Ranges by gender \
1% Temporary
70
64 64 5% Project Based
65 ) o
60 39 14% Accommodated
59 T
55 55
50 51 18 - Accomodation type by gender
48 16 [~

45 44 14 [~
40 37 [ 38 n - ‘ Male Female
35 34 = 8

31 -
30 °C
25 , L I

2 m HO W
20 1 22 1 > > S & O <)
19 19 & & ® & &S
15 <° & Ko &%
@ PO 5@ ©
< O @Q P O

’ Male Female ‘cﬁvﬁatye 58 < e

6 The Wallich: https://thewallich.com/rough-sleepers-statistics/

14



Who accesses &
The Hub?

Services

The three most utilised services are those provided
by the GP, Department for Work and Pensions
(DWP), and Harm Reduction Team, accounting for
~60% of all services accessed.

Of those attendees who only access one service in
their visit, most (~33%) visit the DWP, followed by
Harm Reduction (~16.5%)". Of those attendees who
access the average of three services in a session, the
three most visited services in order of attendance
are the GP service (~33%), the DWP (~22%), and the
Harm Reduction team (~17%).

© 2s%cp @ 5% wesc

) 22% pwp 8% Probation

‘ 13% Harm Reduction . 15% Other

. 9% Salvation Army

Pack Page’b9

7 N.B. Visits to these services also require a visit to the GP
service in the majority of cases.







Meet Billy (m,,
and Helen

Billy and Helen are two service users at The Hub
who shared their stories with us.

Can you tell us about yourself and how you became

involved with The Hub?

Billy
éé

I had my own accommodation but lost it and I have struggled with addiction for 27 years along
moved to my parents. Eventually | was removed with mental health problems. A worker from Ty
from my parents and ended up on the streets Croeso signposted The Hub.

taking drugs for 8 months. While homeless and on
drugs, | spoke to an outreach worker who brought
me to The Hub.

What effect did becoming homeless or at risk of

homelesshess have on you?

Billy
éé

| started taking drugs and it affected my | lost friends and family and it affected my
mental health. mental health.

What services did you access through The Hub?

Billy
éé

GP, DWP, housing, and the mental health team. The Elms detox centre, and a counsellor.

)\




Meet Billy and Helen € -
(continued)

Billy and Helen are two service users at The Hub
who shared their stories with us.

Since you got involved with The Hub, how has your

situation changed?

Billy
éé

I am now accommodated and | feel more positive. I'm getting help [to get] off class A drugs. I'm more
positive and feel more worthy, and | have a purpose.

What was it about The Hub that helped this happen?

Billy
éé

Support from the staff and services. Support to get clean and after care.

Have any new opportunities become available to
you as a result of using The Hub?

Billy
éé

Housing, direct access to services, I'm more Volunteering with the Salvation Army, which is
positive, and I've been invited to join the peer amazing, it gives me purpose. I'm also in contact
mentoring group. with my family now.




2//

What does
The Hub
achieve?

/7




What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

The Hub has achieved a great amount in its first
year of operation as evidenced by the enormous
amount of positive feedback from service users,
partner agencies, and external stakeholders. To
evaluate many of these positive impacts we used a
combination of questionnaires and data analysis.

We wanted to see if The Hub was providing a
needed and wanted service to its users, and a
valuable opportunity for partners, while testing
the assumptions outlined in The Hub’s theory of
change. Below are the summary results of our
evaluation, further details are available in the full
evaluation report, available at ccc-wales.org.

Better awareness of services

Getting the help you need starts with knowing
what services are available. When you're living in

an often chaotic situation, resources aren’t always
readily available to you, and figuring out what'’s

on offer to help you get back on your feet can be

a significant challenge. In other situations, people
can feel a sense of shame or stigma in having to ask
for help. Therefore, a key way of reducing barriers
to access for homeless services is readily available
information and awareness raising.

éé

Because of The Hub, |
am better informed or
more aware of the help
that is available to me.

But this isn’t just of benefit to service users. Partner
agencies also report this as a benefit of delivering
at The Hub for their organisation. “The nature of
The Hub helps us understand people’s roles and

is helping us in gaining knowledge about other
services in Wrexham”, wrote one delivery partner.

We asked services users at The Hub to indicate

the degree to which they agreed or disagreed
with the statement, “because of The Hub, | am
better informed or more aware of the help that is
available to me.” 81% of respondents either agreed
or strongly agreed, with 38% strongly agreeing.

3%

Agree

8%

Strongly agree




What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

Getting the help that’s needed

Awareness isn't enough however, if the services
aren’'t then available for people to access.
Homelessness is a complex, multifaceted crisis
which people can find themselves in for any
number of reasons, and while there may be
commonalities, no two homeless people will have
exactly the same needs. Taking steps towards
tackling homelessness requires a broad range of
services to be available to service users in order to
meet the wide range of needs.

éé

Being able to come to
The Hub makes it easier
to get the help | need.

To gauge whether service users were able to get
the help they needed from The Hub, we asked
respondents to indicate the degree to which they
agreed or disagreed with the statement, “being
able to come to The Hub makes it easier to get the
help | need.” 100% of respondents either agreed or
strongly agreed, with 38% strongly agreeing.

YA

Agree

8%

Strongly agree

Self care

Creating sustainable change depends on The Hub
providing service users with the tools, knowledge,
and resources to be able to take care of themselves.
The Hub exists to help people take those steps
toward greater stability; having meaningful things
to do, positive relationships, and a safe place to

live. As The Hub currently only runs one day a

week, it's important that the service doesn’t create
dependency and provides enough stability for
people to see them through until the next week.

éé

Because of The Hub, |
am better able to take
care of myself.

To evaluate if service users felt The Hub helped
them look after themselves, we asked them to
indicate the degree to which they agreed or
disagreed with the statement, “because of The
Hub, | am better able to take care of myself.” 81% of
respondents either agreed or strongly agreed, with
48% strongly agreeing.

3%

Agree

8%
Strongly agree

21



What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

Letting those who know tell those who don't

Innovation is the cornerstone of The Hub’s design.
The Hub’s founders recognised the need for those
with lived experience of homelessness to shape
how services operate in order to make a real
difference to people’s lives. This innovative service
design took place under the motto, “letting those
who know tell those who don't”.

To evaluate this, we asked services users at The
Hub to indicate the degree to which they agreed

éé

At The Hub | feel more
respected, valued,
and listened to than |
have before.

Ultimately, none of the other factors matter if The
Hub isn’t improving the lives of those accessing the
service. People arrive at The Hub on a Friday morning
expecting to leave in a better state than they arrived
in, and this is something the staff, volunteers, and
partners work tirelessly to make a reality.

To test the assumption that The Hub is making
people’s lives better in the service users’ own
estimation, we asked them to indicate the

| would be worse off if
The Hub wasn’t here.

or disagreed with the statement, “at The Hub |
feel more respected, valued, and listened to than |
have before.” 95% of respondents either agreed or
strongly agreed, with 29% strongly agreeing.

7%

Agree

9%

Strongly agree

degree to which they agreed or disagreed with

the statement, “l would be worse off if The Hub
wasn’t here.” 100% of respondents either agreed or
strongly agreed, with 67% strongly agreeing.

Agree Strongly agree

22




What does
The Hub achieve?

More stable living situations

It is evident then, that The Hub is creating change that is both needed and
wanted in the opinion and experience of service users. But what tangible
difference has The Hub made to reduce homelessness and rough sleeping?
Over a two-month evaluation period at the start of 2019, we monitored the
registers at The Hub to see what difference attending The Hub was having on
the living situation of services users.

Over the evaluation period, the Hub saw:
An 18% increase in service users reporting they were securely

accommodated or accommodated through a private landlord
(from 27 to 32 service users)

A 17% decrease in rough sleeping (from 41 to 34 service users)

A 66% increase in service users accessing project-based
accommodation such as The Wallich’s St. John’s House (from 6 to
10 service users)

A 29% decrease in those accessing temporary accommodation
such as night shelters (from 14 to 10 service users)

A = @ 5

The vast majority (~90%) of those reporting a change in housing situation
overall were female, however the majority of those reporting they are no
longer rough sleeping were male (~74%).

\_‘

E Pack Page 67

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

23




What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

Fewer missed appointments

An aim of the “Everybody in the Room” approach
is that waiting times and barriers to access will be
greatly reduced.

On average service users access three separate
services in a single visit, while 10% of service users
access between 5 and 10 services each visit. The
maximum number of services accessed by one
person over a four-week span was 15.

Services

Male % Female %

accessed per| Total %
week

1 43 |20%| 33 |15% 10 5%

2 26 NM% | 21 10% 3 1%

3 M 5% | N | 5% 0 0%

4 9 4% | 5 | 2% 4 2%
5to10 21 |10%| 18 | 8% 3 1%
10+ 3 1% | 2 | 1% 1 0%

Number of services accessed per visit

25
20%

20 [~

15 I~

11%
10%
10
(o)
5 5% 4%
(0]
1 2 3 4 5-10 10+

While this area is under researched, one paper®
looked at the attrition rate of service users based
on waiting time. The researchers took a cohort

of service users looking to access treatment for
cocaine addiction and measured the likelihood
of attendance when given a 1-7 day waiting

time. While the paper didn’t directly relate to
homelessness it serves as a useful comparison

for the chaotic lives of service users. The research
revealed that it is untenable to expect attendance

at more than two services even when the waiting
time between them is only 1 day. In fact, of those
wanting to access just one service the next day,
only 58% will attend.

Considering that service users at The Hub will
access an average of three different services in one
morning, the likelihood of a service user attending
all three services even if the waiting time between
each service is only one day, is practically 0%.

We can assume that for the 20% of service users
who access 3 or more services in a day, being able
to visit these services in the same morning has
reduced the number of missed appointments.
Future monitoring and evaluation will seek to
quantify this.

The most noted difference, anecdotally, of the time
saving efficiency of The Hub is in accessing welfare
benefits. With many of The Hub’s service users being
unregistered at a GP, the process from beginning a
claim to completion could take two or more weeks.
Routinely now at The Hub, Dr. Sankey and the team
from the DWP work together to get service users
registered, assessed and signed-up for the benefit
they are entitled to in a matter of minutes.

éé

Impressive facility - the
‘speeding up’ of sick note to
benefit payment is significantly

reducing crime locally. Really
engaged staff doing a great job.
Sincere thanks for your efforts.

Inspector Paul Wycherley
North Wales Police

Pack Page 68

8 Festinger, D. S., Lamb, R. J,, Kountz, M. R,, Kirby, K. C., & Marlowe, D. (1995). 24
Pretreatment dropout as a function of treatment delay and client variables.
Addictive Behaviors, 20(1), 111-115.d0i:10.1016/0306-4603(94)00052-



What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

Reduced demand on
emergency services

The Hub’s work not only has positive effects for
service users and partner agencies, we believe the
service user’s ability to access a range of services in
one visit is having wider impacts on local systems
and services as well.

Anecdotal evidence from North Wales Police
suggests that there has been a 42% reduction in
criminal activity with the core group of repeat
Hub attenders.

Arfon Jones, Police and Crime Commissioner for
North Wales Police, is quoted as saying he saw how
The Hub “addresses underlying causes of offending
and antisocial behaviour”.

Officers from further afield have also praised The
Hub, as PC Kevin Horsley, Anti-Social Behaviour
Officer for Thames Valley Police said, ‘I think The
Hub is a fantastic concept and seems to be helping
so many in need. There are definitely elements that
I will take back to my area.”

Future monitoring and evaluation will seek to work
closely with local police and ambulance services to
quantify the reduction in demand on these services.

éé

| think The Hub is a fantastic
concept and seems to be

helping so many in need. There
are definitely elements that |
will take back to my area

Inspector Arfon Jones
Police & Crime Commiissioner, North Wales

Social value

Social return on investment (SROI) is a method

of quantifying extra financial value. The aim of
SROl is to include the values of people that are
often excluded from markets in the same terms as
money, in order to give people a voice in resource
allocation decisions.

Efforts to evaluate the social impact of
homelessness projects in Wales face significant
challenges. Statistical analysis of the causes and
prevalence of homelessness across Wales was made
difficult by changes to the law in 2014. A further
challenge when evaluating homelessness services

is the prevalence of “hidden homelessness”. Aside
from the annual rough-sleeper count, official figures
report applications for statutory homelessness and
those in temporary accommodation only. Finally,
while numbers of bed spaces in hostels are captured
across Wales, these figures outline supply only,
making it difficult to assess need, or demonstrate
the impact services are having to reduce demand.

According to homelessness charity Crisis, this
means that “the extent of homelessness in Wales,
the amount of related work, and the funds required,
may all be underestimated™.

In our attempt to estimate the social value
produced by The Hub we have used the standard
formula provided by Social Value UK (formerly

the SROI Network)®. This takes into account the
value of saving produced by services offered, minus
any overlap and unintended consequences (i.e.
deadweight, attribution, and displacement), divided
by the net investment.

For most of the first twelve months of operation
The Hub operated without funding, working solely
on the goodwill and efforts of Dr. Sankey and the
team. Only in the last month of the 2018 calendar
year did The Hub receive any external grant
funding, totalling £33,543.75.

As the rough sleeping and homeless cohorts are
likely to have different needs, and because the aims
of The Hub relate to both greater stability for service
users and reduced demand on emergency services,
we have chosen to calculate social value separately
for the two cohorts.

Pack Page 69

9 https://www.crisis.org.uk/ending-homelessness/the-plan-to-end-homelessness-full-version/targets-costs/chapter-14-homelessness-data/ 25
° http://www.socialvalueuk.org/app/uploads/2016/03/SROI_Guide-Stage5.pdf



What does

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Hub achieve?

Rough sleeping

The cost of rough sleeping per person is
approximately £1,667 per month" . 7 people reported
they were no longer rough sleeping at the end of the
evaluation period. Had their situation persisted for

a further month, the public purse would be £11,669
worse off, and £140,028 worse off had they remained
rough sleeping for twelve months.

Given the lack of longitudinal data beyond the
evaluation period we do not currently know the
previous number of rough sleepers who found
accommodation through The Hub. We are therefore
using the figure of £140,028 to represent the full
12-month operating period, though in reality this is
likely to be much higher. 19% of people were rough
sleeping at the start of our evaluation period; we
will therefore use this as our deadweight figure.

The rough sleeper count for Wrexham fell by 45% in
2018 compared to the previous year. Therefore, using
this figure as our attribution rate we can calculate a
potential social return on investment for the rough
sleeping cohort alone as: £140,028 * (1-0.19) * (1 -
0.45)/ £33,543.75 = £1.85.

SROI estimate for rough

sleepers

Remaining cohort

Given the aim of The Hub to reduce demand on
emergency service and primary care, we will use

the cost impact on these services as our guide for
calculating social value for the remaining cohort.
Research suggests that those who are homeless for
three months or longer cost on average £4,298 per
person to NHS services and £11,991 per person in
contact with the criminal justice system'. The total
for these two services is therefore £16,289 per person.

5 people reported that they moved into “secure
accommodation” or became accommodated
through a private landlord during the two-
month evaluation period. Again, given the lack of
longitudinal data beyond the evaluation period
we do not currently know the previous number
of homeless people who found accommodation
through The Hub. We are therefore using the
figure of 5 people to represent the full 12-month
operating period, though in reality this is likely to
be much higher.

Given that 13% of people reported themselves

as accommodated at the start of the evaluation
period, we will use this as a dead weight figure. The
number of statutory homelessness applications
prevented or relieved in a 56-day period was 43%,
which we will use as our attribution figure. Giving us
a total calculation of: 5*16,298 * (1 - 0.13) * (1- 0.43) /
£33,543.75 = £1.20

SROI estimate for

homeless cohort

Which we can add together to arrive at an
estimated SROI for the trends observed during the
evaluation period at £3.05 per pound of investment.

Total SROI estimate £3.05: £]

This suggests that The Hub is already achieving an
excellent level of value for money for the services it
provides. Future evaluation will seek to quantify a
more nuanced estimate of The Hub’s social return
on investment through improved data capture and
monitoring practices.

Pack Page 70

" Pleace, N. (2015) At what cost? An estimation of the financial costs of single homelessness in the UK. London: Crisis.
2 pleace, N. & Culhane, D.P. (2016) Better than Cure? Testing the case for Enhancing Prevention of Single Homelessness in England. London: Crisis.

26







Learning

The Hub’s first year of operation has been an astounding success and there are a number of ways we
suggest The Hub can optimise its procedures and practices to ensure its continued flourishing for future

service users.

COMMUNITY

CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

Below is a summary of key learning issues and learning from the evaluation period and suggested actions

to mitigate them.

Lessons learnt

Suggested action to

mitigate issue

Data collection

Inconsistent and disjointed data collection prevents
meaningful analysis on individual service users and
The Hub as a whole. A lack of consistent data sharing

The Hub may wish to use Care
Navigators as a single point

sharing due to
fears around
GDPR

?szgec'lsu;rl:atvyent betwegn partners means key points.of a service of_ contact for data capture,
meaningful users’ journey are often lost, preventing The Hub eliminating the neec;l for
analysis from having an end-to-end picture qf the average separate capture points at
service user and the lack of longitudinal data means |each service.
outcome evaluation is severely hampered.
Lack of The Hub should develop and
information Alongside the above, partners cited The Hub’s lack provide partner agencies

of assurance of GDPR compliance as a concern when
being asked to collect or share information.

with a robust set of GDPR
compliant policies and
procedures.

External agencies’
misconceptions
of service is
causing delays or
interruptions in
partner agency

A small number of delivery partners cited their

ownh internal governance and attitudes of other

staff within their organisations (particularly those

in middle management positions) as problematic
when justifying their attendance at The Hub. For
example, the open nature of the delivery space
caused a manager from a prominent delivery partner
to suggest the agency not attend The Hub. It was only

We believe that the previous
suggested actions in this
evaluation will go a long
way to securing buy-in from
organisations, particularly
with regard to more

practicalities are
causing delays or
interruptions in
partner agency
delivery

delivery once senior managers from the partner bought into |comprehensive governance.
the innovative nature of The Hub was the continued
presence of this partner assured.
The Hub should consult
) with partner agencies as to

A final detail mentioned in partner agencies’
feedback was that, because of the nature of the room
The Hub is currently based in, some practicalities such
as the availability of plug sockets can reduce their
ability to deliver a good service.

their practical requirements
and make provision where
possible, or communicate
with partners what additional
practical items they may need
to bring with them when
attending The Hub.

Ongoing analysis
of service user

While a low number of very young and older
people accessing the service can be explained by
local authority statistics, The Hub cannot presently

The Hub’s data capture
procedure should seek to
incorporate more in-depth
demographic monitoring at

and legal advice
services

cohorts ggmogrr:aan%(lzgngltudmal analysis of service user every stage of the service user
grap ) journey.
Lack of dentistry When asked what additional services they would The Hub should evaluate the

like the see attending The Hub, delivery partners
consistently cited dentistry and legal advice services
such as attendance by a solicitor.

Pack Page 72

need for these services and
seek to invite them to The Hub
where possible.

28






What's
next?

It is clear from the feedback of service users, staff,
volunteers, partners and external stakeholders that
The Hub is providing a service that is both wanted
and needed by the homeless and rough sleeping
population of Wrexham.

It is the conclusion of this evaluation that The Hub’s
operating assumptions are well founded and that
The Hub, through those assumptions, is achieving
its intended outcomes. Further, the potential social
return on investment achievable by The Hub’s
innovative delivery model represents excellent
value for money.

Immediate next steps for The Hub should focus

on data collection and monitoring improvements,
taking into account the learning outlined in

the previous section of this report. Building a
robust data set for the Community Care Hub,
involving longitudinal monitoring of service user
outcomes has potential benefits for all areas of Hub
operation; from increased stakeholder buy-in and
improved resource efficiency, to enabling future
evaluations to better capture long-term impact for
service users and stakeholders alike. Pre and post
measurement of outcomes, as well as joined-up
data sharing between partner agencies and other
stakeholders such as A&E departments and the
police would also facilitate improved social value
calculations for the wider community.

—

5

COMMUNITY
CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

The Everybody in the Room model has proven

to be a faster, more efficient means of providing
health and social care to those experiencing
chaotic living situations, and as such the approach
could be replicated to address the needs of other
vulnerable or hard to reach groups such as:

A&E frequent attenders
People with persistent physical symptoms

People experiencing emotional and
psychological distress

Older people and the socially isolated
Carers

Those with health needs such as people with:

o Dementia

e Learning disabilities
e Co-morbidity

e Sensory impairment

The CCC team has a range of exciting co-
designed services planned for the future
of The Hub including peer mentoring
schemes and a learning hub where service
users can access further opportunities for

study, work and volunteering. Along with

the recommendations of this report, these
additions represent an ongoing commitment
to those faced with the devastating reality

of homelessness, helping them live happier,
healthier lives.

Y/ O,

a]a]a]a]a]s




p
ﬂ
About the

authors ’



About the
authors

COMMUNITY
CARE

COLLABORATIVE

Capacity: The Public Services Lab

Capacity is a unique partnership between Catch22,
Big Society Capital, Interserve and Amberside
Advisors. We work in the public sector to bring
public, private and third sector organisations
together through a common goal. We believe
public services are best delivered by the
communities they serve.

We’'re building a better society by helping
commissioners design services and processes
differently and supporting ventures to start-up,
grow and win funding. We wish to evidence the
effectiveness of this approach through assessing the
impact of innovative approaches to public service
provision such as the Hub.

To learn more about the work Capacity does, visit
capacitylab.co.uk

CAPACITY

The Public Services Lab

CIC

32




COMMUNITY

CARE
COLLABORATIVE
CIC

CCC-Wales.Gi'ty



Agenda Item 3

Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee

13 November 2019 - papers to note cover sheet

Paper no. Issue From Action point
ELGC(5)-31-19 | Inquiry into rough sleeping | John Griffiths AM To note
Paper 4 in Wales
ELGC(5)-31-19 | Inquiry into pregnancy, Jane Hutt AM, To note
Paper 5 maternity and work in Wales | Deputy Minister
and Chief Whip

ELGC(5)-31-19 | Scrutiny of the Public Nick Bennett, Public | To note
Paper 6 Services Ombudsman for Services

Wales Annual Report and Ombudsman for

Accounts 2018/19 Wales

Pack Page 78




Papur 4 Llythyr at Lywodraeth Cymru
Paper 4 Letter to Welsh Government

genda Iltem 3.1

Julie James
Minister for Housing and Local Government

4 November 2019
Rough Sleeping in Wales
Dear Julie,

Thank you for giving evidence to the Committee on 17 October. The Committee
felt that there was a clear sense of pace and urgency around the work, particularly
stemming from the response to the Homelessness Action Group
recommendations. As you are aware the speed of progress in tacking rough
sleeping has been an area of concern previously for the Committee. We will
continue to monitor progress on this important issue, and look forward to hearing
your responses to subsequent reports from the Group.

However, there were some issues that we wish to follow up. One of the issues we
explored was how support can be best delivered to specific groups, such as
addressing youth homelessness amongst the LGBTQ+ community or for people
with neuro-diverse conditions. While we acknowledge the potential impact of
“artificial barriers” and the need to address homelessness across the piece, we are
concerned that there is a need for greater tailoring of support services within the
broader over-arching framework for tackling homelessness. How will you ensure
that the wider framework which underpins this individual approach on a personal
level will take account of the particular circumstances and needs of distinct
groups with specific needs?

We have concerns about how effective the current system is at supporting those
who have both substance misuse and mental health difficulties. This was

Pack Page 79



Papur 4 Llythyr at Lywodraeth Cymru
Paper 4 Letter to Welsh Government

something that was particularly highlighted during our engagement with people
who had experience of sleeping rough. As a result of our concerns, we will be
undertaking some further work to better understand the current levels of
provision, and whether there are barriers to accessing co-ordinated support which
takes account of both substance misuse and mental health conditions.

We would also like some further information on how you will be evaluating the
impact of the changes you are introducing, including the implementation of the
Action Group recommendations. In particular, how will you take account of the
views of those receiving support and services, and whether the changes have
resulted in improvements as to how the system “feels” to them. We understand
that this sort of qualitative evaluation is being undertaken on people’s
experiences of the Social Services and Well-being (Wales) Act.

Finally, this is clearly an ambitious programme of change, that will hopefully
result in real and visible changes, and a significant reduction on the numbers of
people sleeping rough, but are you confident that local authorities and other
support services will have sufficient resources to deliver this ambitious
programme of change? In particular, we are aware that local authorities face
challenging budgets, and that many services, both statutory and non-statutory,
have been subject to significant reductions because of budgetary pressures.

| look forward to receiving your response.

Yours sincerely,

5 e

John Griffiths
Croesewir gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg neu Saesneg.

We welcome correspondence in Welsh or English.

Pack Page 80



Papur 5 Llywodraeth Cymru
Paper 5 Welsh Government /

Jane Hutt AC/AM Agendﬁ\"

Y Dirprwy Weinidog a’r Prif Chwip

Deputy Minister and Chief Whip )\J[L;J:)

2

Llywodraeth Cymru
Welsh Government

John Griffiths AM,

Chair

Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee
Ty Hywel

Cardiff Bay

CF99 1NA

4 November 2019
Dear John,

This letter updates you on work we’ve undertaken to improve transparency in the equality
data published by Welsh public bodies. This follows the Committee’s recommendation, in
the report on parenting and employment in Wales, to “publish employment data required by
the Welsh public sector equality duties to a single location on the Welsh Government’s
website, in a format that allows the data to be analysed easily”.

When accepting the recommendation we noted that, given public sector employers have the
responsibility for complying with the duty, we would work with public sector bodies to ensure
their equality data were published as open data, and provide a single location to enable
straightforward access this information.

This year, for the first time, Welsh Government published open data spreadsheets to
accompany its 2017-18 Employer’s Equality Report. Following this we worked with, and
supported, public bodies by sharing guidance on publishing open data tables, circulating
FAQs and hosting webinars to share best practices. As a result of this work users can now
find links to Public Sector Equality Duty data in one place in the Equality and diversity
section of our StatsWales! website, making it easier to find and analyse the information.

It has been encouraging to see the positive support of the public bodies in our attempt to
demonstrate greater transparency and accountability in the way public body equality data is
published. Currently not all public bodies are included, therefore we will continue to work
with those bodies to encourage them to publish open data spreadsheets that we can then
add to the published list.

! https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Public-Sector-Equality-Duty
Canolfan Cyswllt Cyntaf / First Point of Contact Centre:
0300 0604400

Bae Caerdydd . Cardiff Bay Gohebiaeth.Jane.Hutt@llyw.cymru
Caerdydd . Cardiff Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@gov.wales
CF99 1NA

Rydym yn croesawu derbyn gohebiaeth yn Gymraeg. Byddwn yn ateb gohebiaeth a dderbynnir yn Gymraeg yn Gymraeg ac ni fydd
gohebu yn Gymraeg yn arwain at oedi.

We welcome receiving correspondence in Welsh. Any coﬁ')e%grl@eﬁgaig@iv&]in Welsh will be answered in Welsh and corresponding
in Welsh will not lead to a delay in responding.


mailto:Gohebiaeth.Jane.Hutt@llyw.cymru
mailto:Correspondence.Jane.Hutt@gov.wales
http://www.assembly.wales/laid%20documents/cr-ld11669/cr-ld11669-e.pdf
https://statswales.gov.wales/Catalogue/Equality-and-Diversity/Public-Sector-Equality-Duty

Papur 5 Llywodraeth Cymru
Paper 5 Welsh Government

We’'re also aware that public bodies will be publishing data using inconsistent categories.
But we were keen to take the first, easier, step of providing a central point to access these
data.

We believe that bringing this open data available into a single location demonstrates the
commitment of Wales’ public sector to advancing and safeguarding equality and human
rights.

| hope the Committee finds this update helpful.
“\ u [
An .
J
Jane Hutt AC/AM

Y Dirprwy Weinidog a’r Prif Chwip
Deputy Minister and Chief Whip

Pack Page 82



Papur 6 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Paper 6 Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

BMR3
mbwdsmon

PUBLIC SERVICES OMBUDSMAMN FOR WALES
OMBWDSMON GWASANAETHAU CYHOEDDUS CYMRU

Our ref: NB/mm Ask for: Nick Bennett
@ 01656 641152

Date: 7 November 2019 Marilyn.morgan
@ombudsman-wales.org.uk

John Griffiths AM
Chair, Equality, Local Government and Communities Committee

Via Email Only:
SeneddCommunities@assembly.wales

Dear John
Thank you for your letter of 25 October.
| am pleased to provide the additional information requested by the Committee.

Firstly, you asked about the nature of complaints about GP and dental services. The
Annual Report shows that complaints about NHS bodies, received in 2018/19, were
9% higher than in the previous year. Within this, complaints received about GPs
were up 22% (to 144) and complaints received about dentists were up 86% (to

41). Complaints were about a variety of issues, including the failure to respond
properly and promptly to complaints, and rudeness of reception and clinical staff.

Complaints about GPs included a number about prescriptions (changes of
medication, refusal to prescribe the specific drugs requested by patients, repeat
prescriptions and prescriptions not being provided quickly). Some complaints related
to refusal of, or delays to, home visits. Others were about missed diagnosis and
failure to refer patients’ to secondary care for further investigation. Several complaints
were the result of action taken by GP practices as a result of alleged rudeness or
aggression of patients.

Complaints about dentists were generally about the quality of dental work, with a
small number about failure to identify more serious health conditions as part of dental
checks/work.

Page 1 of 3

Public Services Ombudsman For Wales | Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru, 1 Ffordd yr Hen Gae, Pencoed CF35 5LJ
=) www.ombudsman-wales.org.uk | www.ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

%% 01656 641150 - OIESGﬁﬁE’R Pa;:'gékgsmbudsman-wales,org‘uk | helweh@ombwdsmon-cymru.org.uk

All calls are recorded for training and reference purposes | Bydd pob galwad yn cael ei recordio ar gyfer dibenion hyfforddi a chyfeirio



Papur 6 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Paper 6 Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

Whilst the numbers of complaints about GPs and dentists increased, and a number
were subject to full investigation, it is worth pointing out that 13 complaints about GPs
were upheld and 1 complaint about a dentist was upheld. In addition, 11 complaints
about GPs were settled (mostly as early resolutions) where it was clear that the GP
could act to resolve the complaint by apology or further explanation/response. 4
complaints about dentists were settled by early resolution, where the dentist agreed
to take specific actions to resolve the complaint.

Many of the complaints | received were not ones that | could investigate, either
because they related to events more than a year previously, or because the
complaints had not been made to the GP or dentist concerned, or because the
principal reason for the complaint was to secure financial compensation.

Secondly you asked about the interaction of my work with the Putting Things Right
(PTR) regulations. The new model complaints process will work in parallel with the
existing PTR regulations (and the statutory Social Services complaints

procedure). As required by section 37 of the Public Services Ombudsman (Wales)
Act 2019 the principles of any model complaints-handling procedure which relates to
concerns about the NHS will be consistent with the terms of the Putting Things Right
regulations. Any draft model complaint handling process for health bodies will be
fully consulted upon, in accordance with the Act, before its publication. | would add
that the Complaints Standards role should actually reinforce the PTR regulations by
backing them with a model complaints-handling process, by working with NHS bodies
to ensure that PTR and the model complaints handling process are followed and by
providing data on NHS bodies’ compliance with PTR processes and timescales.

Finally you asked for more information on Code of Conduct complaints closed after
initial consideration. Here is the further breakdown:

Community Local Grand
Council Authority Total
Accountability and openness 12 7 19
Disclosure and registration of
interests 33 13 46
Duty to uphold the law 13 3 16
Integrity 18 16 34
Obijectivity and propriety 3 3 6
Promotion of equality and respect 101 32 133
Selflessness and stewardship 1 1
Grand Total 180 75 255

In view of the Committee’s comment on the relevance and value of this information, |
will review the Code of Conduct complaint information to be included in my next
Annual Report with a view to ensuring that it provides a clear and proportionate
summary of my office’s work in this area.

Pack Page 84
Page 2 of 3



Papur 6 Ombwdsmon Gwasanaethau Cyhoeddus Cymru
Paper 6 Public Services Ombudsman for Wales

| hope this information adequately answers the questions you ask. | would, of
course, be happy to provide further information or explanation if it does not.

Yours sincerely

Ay

Nick Bennett
Ombudsman

Pack Page 85
Page 3 of 3



	Agenda
	2 Rough sleeping in Wales follow up: evidence session
	ELGC(5)-31-19 Paper 1
	The Wallich - Private Paper
	ELGC(5)-31-19 Paper 2
	ELGC(5)-31-19 Paper 3

	3 Papers to note
	3.1 Correspondence to the Minister for Housing and Local Government regarding rough sleeping in Wales - 4 November 2019
	3.2 Correspondence from the Deputy Minister and Chief Whip regarding the equality data published by Welsh public bodies - 4 November 2019
	3.3 Correspondence from the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales regarding the request for further information - 7 November 2019



